# CHILDREN YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILIES POLICY AND PERFORMANCE BOARD

At a meeting of the Children Young People and Families Policy and Performance Board on Monday, 10 September 2018 in the Civic Suite - Town Hall, Runcorn

Present: Councillors Dennett (Chair), Logan (Vice-Chair), Carlin, Cassidy, P. Hignett, Horabin, Leck, P. Lloyd Jones and J. Stockton

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Whitley

Absence declared on Council business: None

Officers present: A. McIntyre, A. Jones, T. Coffey and J. Farrell

Also in attendance: S. McHale - NHS Halton CCG

# ITEMS DEALT WITH UNDER DUTIES EXERCISABLE BY THE BOARD

Action

#### CYP12 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2018 were taken as read and signed as a correct record.

#### CYP13 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

The Board was advised that no public questions had been received.

#### CYP14 EXECUTIVE BOARD MINUTES

The minutes relating to the Children, Education and Social Care Portfolio that had been considered by the Executive Board since the last meeting of this Board, were attached at Appendix 1 for information.

EXB6 – concerns were raised over the High Needs budget deficit for 2018-19. It was noted that this situation was not unique to Halton as it was a national problem.

RESOLVED: That the minutes are noted.

#### CYP15 SSP MINUTES

The minutes of the Halton Children's Trust meeting held on 24 May 2018, were submitted to the Board for Information.

RESOLVED: That the minutes are noted.

#### CYP16 OFSTED FOCUSED VISIT JULY 2018

The Board received the findings of the recent Ofsted focused visit to the Integrated Contact and Referral Team (iCART) and its recommendations.

It was reported that Ofsted had implemented a new inspection framework for children's social care. As Halton currently had a 'requiring improvement' judgement from its single inspection in 2014, it would receive two focussed visits and a standard two week inspection over a 3 year period. It was noted that with regards to timing and type of inspection, Ofsted made judgements on these based on their intelligence, published data and their analysis of risk in how a local authority was performing.

Appended to the report was the Inspector's letter containing the findings of the focussed visit to iCART in July 2018. Members were advised that overall the letter outlined a strong service that served families well and safeguarded children appropriately. There were no areas for immediate action and only three recommendations were made, which had already been responded to.

In response to one Member's query about the comment made regarding partners 'not always effectively capturing the voice of the child' and what could be done about this, it was noted that partnership working was still improving and 'iCART workshops' were planned specifically for partners in the near future.

On behalf of the Board the Chair passed on thanks to the staff concerned with the inspection. He also reminded the Board that Climbie visits could be carried out by Members at any time and were valuable, as they provided an insight into the work being carried out by social workers.

RESOLVED: That the Board notes the Ofsted letter and the significant improvement in the service since the single inspection in 2014.

#### CYP17 EXCLUSIONS

The Board received a report which outlined the level of exclusions nationally and those in Halton over the last four years.

It was reported that the Department for Education

(DfE) provided National Statistics on permanent and fixed period exclusions in England, with the most recent being for 2016-17 which were published on 19 July 2018 and updated on 6 August 2018. The information in Table 1 showed the significant increase in both permanent and fixed term exclusions over the last three years from 2014-15. This trend had been confirmed in a recent press article which noted the national rise of pupils being excluded and sent to pupil referral units and suggested that this was a result of the pressures placed on schools to show good results.

Members were advised that in Halton the information available was up to the end of the academic year 2017-18 and showed that although permanent exclusions had increased from 15 to 32, as there were 53 exclusions in 2016-17, the total number of permanent exclusions reduced in 2017-18. This trend continued in the case of fixed term exclusions.

The report also presented information on the primary sector in Halton which saw an increase in exclusions; comparisons over the years were displayed in charts 3 and 4. The report provided information on the reasons for permanent and fixed term exclusions in Halton.

It was reported that following a review of exclusions, the House of Commons Education Committee published a report 'Forgotten Children: alternative provision and the scandal of ever increasing exclusions' in July 2018. A summary of its conclusions was provided in the Officer's report.

The Board discussed the rates of exclusions in Halton in both the primary and secondary sectors and the steps that were required to be taken to promote a more positive approach to behaviour management and to encourage greater inclusion within schools. Paragraph 6.1 outlined these steps.

During presentation of the report the following points were discussed:

- The low rate of exclusions in Halton's special schools and what could be learnt from them;
- Although there was a reduction in secondary exclusions the rise in primary exclusions was a concern particularly at Year 4, where there was a spike in permanent and fixed term exclusions;
- The most common reason provided by schools for exclusions was persistent disruptive behaviour. The

Board discussed the possible reasons why disruptive behaviour was on the increase and why schools appeared to be less tolerant than previously and discussed whether the new curriculum, performance measures and funding were key factors;

- The Council had a new 'In Year Fair Access Protocol' and tracked and shared details of all in year secondary admissions which may have contributed to the recent dip in secondary exclusions;
- Members discussed the steps taken by schools leading up to an exclusion and the process for asking the LA for assistance once a child had been identified as a possible exclusion;
- It was suggested that advocacy was needed for the excluded pupil and their parents;
- It was noticed that nationally the academy sector had a culture of excluding pupils;
- Parents did not challenge exclusions and were not aware of their rights, eg. appealing the decision;
- The skills and knowledge and confidence of school staff in dealing with pupils with challenging behaviour was discussed; and
- Members agreed that the subject needed to be raised with School Governors.

Overall the Board was pleased to receive the report outlining the positive steps taken to bring down the exclusion rate in Halton and supported the work, the focus on schools and the drive to reduce exclusions across the Borough. The following was asked:

#### What was the gender split in exclusions?

Historically this was predominantly male, however this had changed. The exact split was not to hand so this information would be sent to the Board following the meeting.

# Was the rise in primary schools exclusions reflective of parents' inability to cope?

This could be the case but there had also been a new curriculum and accountability framework introduced. Schools did report increasing concerns with parents' ability to manage particularly since the introduction of universal credit.

#### How effective was home schooling?

For some families it was successful however for others this was not the case, as parents did not have the required skills. Data was not available to compare the performance of those who had been home educated. It was noted that Halton's Education Welfare Department had a protocol on Elective

Home Education and could make home visits to check the children but had limited powers to intervene.

RESOLVED: That the Board supports the drive to reducing exclusions and the promotion of a more inclusive practice.

Operational
Director Education,
Inclusion and
Provision

The Chair advised Members that the current Topic Group around Mental Health provision for Children and Young People had been cancelled, due to a request from the Leader of the Council for the Board to identify savings within their remit as the Scrutiny Board of the Children, Education and Social Care Portfolio.

# CYP18 TRANSFORMING CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S MENTAL HEALTH PROVISION

The Board received a report on the progress made in transforming children and young people's mental health provision and the future actions planned.

It was reported that the Department of Health and NHS England established a Children and Young People's Mental Health and Wellbeing Taskforce which reported in March 2015 (*Future in Mind*) and set out the ambitions for improving children's and young people's mental health provision by 2020, including making better links between schools and specialist services. It was noted that the key objectives included:

- 1. Tackling stigma and improving attitudes to mental illness:
- 2. Introducing more access and waiting time standards for services;
- 3. Establishing 'one stop shop' support services in the community; and
- 4. Improving access for children and young people who were particularly vulnerable.

It was noted that the Green Paper 'Transforming children and young people's mental health provision' published in December 2017, detailed world leading ambitions through proposals to create a network of support for children and young people and their educational settings. This new approach would be tested and evaluated for future roll-out, as gathering evidence would be a crucial step in delivering on the aims set out in the Green Paper and aligned with the priorities set out for mental health as part of the long-term plan. Members noted there were three core proposals:

1. To incentivise and support all schools and colleges to

- identify and train a Designated Senior Lead for mental health;
- 2. To fund new mental health support teams, this would be supervised by NHS children and young people's mental health staff; and
- To pilot a four week waiting time for access to specialist NHS children and young people's mental health services.

It was reported that locally, improving the emotional health and wellbeing outcomes for children and young people was a shared priority for Halton Borough Council and NHS Halton CCG. The *One Halton* programme was a joint initiative that included all stakeholders working to support adults, children and young people in Halton. The report outlined to the Board the work that had been undertaken already (paragraph 4) and explained the main areas that would be progressed in the coming year.

The following queries were raised by Members:

How is it proposed to 'incentivise and support all schools and colleges to identify and train a Designated Senior Lead for mental health?'

This was not clear at this point in time as it would be dependent upon the level of funding provided. The designated person could be an existing staff member or a new recruit.

Was the funding for the transformation agenda secure? CAMHS was funded by the CCG and this would be recurrent until 2020, if the services in place proved to be a success. The new programmes and services being introduced were explained.

Can a progress report be brought to the Board in 12 months' time?

The transformation was driving up the quality of services to young people and we would be happy to report on progress in 12 months' time.

RESOLVED: That the Board notes the significant transformation of provision.

# CYP19 SUMMARY OF 2018 PROVISIONAL UN-VALIDATED ATTAINMENT OUTCOMES

The Board received a presentation on the provisional unvalidated 2018 educational attainment for Halton's children and young people at Early Years Foundation Stage

(EYFS); phonics performance and Key Stages 1, 2, 4 and 5.

Members were advised that the data was based on statutory assessments of the EYFS and statutory assessments of all key stages. This was unvalidated data before publication of the validated data by the Department for Education (DfE) in December 2018. It was noted that more detailed group data and national data on Key Stage 4 progress would be available and provided to the Board once it was released and validated.

RESOLVED: That the presentation be received.

# CYP20 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORTS - QUARTER 4 OF 2017-18

The Board received the Performance Management reports for quarter 4 of 2017-18 (1 January to 31 March 2018). It was noted that these had been sent to Members for their consideration in advance of this agenda on 19 June 2018, after they were finalised (*minute CYP11 of 11 June 2018 refers*).

Officers advised that there was a typo on page 56 under *Improve the offer for children and young people with SEND (PE04)*. The last box under 'current' should read 37,536 against a target of 40,000.

RESOLVED: That the reports be noted.

# CYP21 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORTS - QUARTER 1 OF 2018-19

The Board received the Performance Management reports for quarter 1 of 2018-19 (1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018) and were requested to consider and raise any questions or points of clarification in respect of these.

It was noted that the key priorities for development or improvement in 2018-19 were agreed by Members and included in the Local Authority's Business Plan, for the various functional areas reported to the Board as follows:

- Education, Inclusion and Provision Services; and
- Children and Families Services.

The reports detailed progress made against objectives and milestones and performance targets and provided information relating to key developments and emerging issues that had arisen during the period.

RESOLVED: That the performance management reports for quarter 1 of 2018-19 be received.

Meeting ended at 8.53 p.m.